
To: Councillor Forsyth, Convener; and Councillors Boulton, Corall, Cormie, Delaney, 
Graham, Grant, Len Ironside CBE, Kiddie, MacGregor, Malik, Malone and 
Townson.
 

Town House,
ABERDEEN 9 September 2013

LICENSING COMMITTEE

The Members of the LICENSING COMMITTEE are requested to meet in 
Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY, 17 SEPTEMBER 2013 at 10.00 am.

JANE G MACEACHRAN
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

B U S I N E S S

MINUTES, REFERRALS AND INFORMAL BUSINESS

1.1  Minute of Previous Meeting of 18 June 2013  (Pages 5 - 16)

1.2  Minute of Meeting of Sports Ground Advisory Working Group of 20 June 
2013  (Pages 17 - 18)

1.3  Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation - Overprovision Consultation 
Feedback - Referral from the Housing and Environment Committee  
(Pages 19 - 92)

1.4  Informal Business Statement  (Pages 93 - 94)

APPLICATIONS FOR LICENCES - INCLUDING LIST OF APPLICATIONS

2.1  Renewal of a Licence for a House in Multiple Occupation  - 2 Wallacebrae 
Road  (Pages 97 - 102)

Public Document Pack



2.2  Renewal of a Licence for a House in Multiple Occupation - 42 Skene 
Terrace  (Pages 103 - 110)

2.3  Renewal of a Licence for a House in Multiple Occupation - 19 Rosehill 
Place  (Pages 111 - 114)

2.4  Grant of a Licence for a House in Multiple Occupation - 13 Ashgrove Road  
(Pages 115 - 126)

2.5  Grant of a Licence for a House in Multiple Occupation - 145 Crown Street  
(Pages 127 - 130)

2.6  Renewal of a Public Entertainment Licence - St Andrews Cathedral Church  
(Pages 131 - 132)

2.7  Grant of a Late Hours Catering Licence - McDonald's Restaurants  (Pages 
133 - 134)

2.8  Grant of a Late Hours Catering Licence - Adies  (Pages 135 - 136)

2.9  Grant of a Metal Dealer Licence - GB International (UK) Limited, Kiosk P2  
(Pages 137 - 140)

2.10  Renewal of a Street Trader Licence - Alexander Jack  (Pages 141 - 146)

2.11  Grant of a Street Trader Licence - Elaine Elrick  (Pages 147 - 148)

2.12  Grant of a Street Trader Licence - Feng Lan Huang  (Pages 149 - 150)

2.13  Grant of a Taxi Driver Licence - David Robert Bruce  (Pages 151 - 152)

REPORTS

3.1  Review of Night Time Ranks - EPI/13/164  (Pages 153 - 156)

3.2  Taxi Demand Survey - Rank Specific Recommendations - EPI/13/163  
(Pages 157 - 160)

3.3  Taxi Licences - Condition 16, Roof Signs - CG/13/076  (Pages 161 - 168)

3.4  Taxi Licence Limit - Survey Update - CG/13/085  (Pages 169 - 174)

3.5  Taxi Fare Review - CG/13/036  (Pages 175 - 204)



3.6  Late Hours Catering Guidelines - Legislative Amendments - Update - 
CG/13/046  (Pages 205 - 212)

COMMITTEE BUSINESS STATEMENT

4.1  Committee Business Statement  (Pages 213 - 214)

5  APPLICATIONS TO BE HEARD IN PRIVATE IN TERMS OF THE DATA 
PROTECTION ACT 1998 - INCLUDING LIST OF APPLICATIONS  

5.1  Renewal of a Late Hours Catering Licence  

5.2  Grant of a Second Hand Vehicle Dealer Licence  

5.3  Grant of a Second Hand Dealer Licence  

5.4  Grant of a Booking Office Licence  

5.5  Application for a Temporary Booking Office Licence  

5.6  Grant of a Private Hire Car Licence  

5.7  Grant of a Private Hire Car Licence  

5.8  Grant of a Private Hire Car Licence  

5.9  Grant of a Taxi Driver Licence  

5.10  Grant of a Taxi Driver Licence  

5.11  Renewal of a Taxi Driver Licence  

5.12  Renewal of a Taxi Driver Licence  

Website:  www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Mark 
Masson, tel. 52(2989) or e-mail mmasson@aberdeencity.gov.uk 



This page is intentionally left blank



ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

COMMITTEE Housing & Environment

DATE 27th August 2013

DIRECTOR Pete Leonard

TITLE OF REPORT Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation
(HMO) - Overprovision Consultation Feedback

REPORT NUMBER: H&E/13/050

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT

The Housing & Environment Committee, at its meeting on 28thAugust
2012, instructed officers to monitor and consult on (with Community
Councils) the issue of HMO overprovision in Aberdeen and policy
development across Scotland, and to provide a further report
following consultation. This report details the outcome of this
consultation and the developing position across Scotland.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

It is recommended that Committee:

I. Agrees that following analysis of the current HMO provision in
the city and the responses to the consultation that no

policy on HMO overprovision is introduced.

II. Instructs the Director of Housing & Environment to continue to
monitor policy and legal developments in HMO

overprovision across Scotland and report back to Committee as
appropriate if there are developments which require the
Council’s position on HMO overprovision to be reviewed.

III. Agrees that a review of the position of overprovision should be
formally undertaken in 2016 if this has not been required

earlier by recommendation ll above.

IV. Notes that any HMO application that is the subject of a
representation will be considered by the Licensing

Committee who will decide whether to grant a HMO licence.

V. Remit this report and Committee decision to the
Licensing

Committee for their information and independent
action.

Page 21



3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

The introduction of an HMO Overprovision Policy would impact on
the number of HMO licence applications being received and as
such the amount of HMO licence fees paid to the Council to
manage the HMO licensing function.

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS

The introduction of an HMO Overprovision Policy would lead to
some additional work to be done required by the HMO Unit in order
to provide information in relation to the number and capacity of
licenced and pending HMO licenced properties within the
locality of the HMO application.

5. BACKGROUND/MAIN ISSUES

In Scotland HMO licensing has provided control over the standard and
safety of property to be used as HMO accommodation.

On 31st January 2012 new powers were introduced which allow
HMO licensing authorities to control the spatial distribution of HMOs
where it considers that there is overprovision in a locality.

These new powers are included in the Private Rented Housing (Scotland)
Act 2011 and insert a new section 131A into the Housing (Scotland) Act
2006. The section from the Act for these powers is attached as Appendix
1.
Scottish Government Guidance

The Scottish Government provides Statutory Guidance on HMO Licensing
for Scottish Local Authorities. This was updated in January 2012 to reflect
these new powers.

“4.11 A SECTION 131A - OVERPROVISION

4.11 A.1 The local authority has the discretionary power to refuse to grant
an HMO licence if it considers that there is, or that the grant of a licence
would result in, overprovision of HMOs in the locality. It is for the local
authority to determine the locality. In considering whether to refuse to
grant a licence on this ground the local authority must have regard to
whether there is an existing HMO licence in effect in respect of the living
accommodation and, where known, the views of the applicant and any
occupants. In considering whether there is overprovision, the authority
must have regard to the number and capacity of licenced HMOs in the
locality, as well as the need for HMO accommodation in the locality.

Page 22



4.11 A.2 Generally an HMO licence is granted for three years. Where there
are large numbers of HMOs it will be open to a local authority as to how it
treats applications from existing owners. If it refuses an application from
an existing owner it will reduce HMO numbers, but this will have an
adverse impact on existing landlords and possibly tenants.

4.11 A.3 It will be for local authorities to decide whether and how to apply
this power. Scottish Ministers would however expect local authorities who
wished to use this power to develop, and consult on, an explicit
overprovision policy. Local authorities may wish to jointly develop best
practice guidance to facilitate this process.“

On 26 March 2013 the City Council commenced a consultation regarding
the development of an HMO Overprovision Policy. The consultation was
hosted on the Council’s website.

Details of the survey were issued to:
Current HMO licence holders

HMO licence applicants Community
Councils

Officers of Aberdeen City Council (Social Work, Housing
Managers, Homelessness& Planning)

Councillors
Student Organisations (AUSA, RGU & Aberdeen

College) University Accommodation Officers
(Aberdeen & RGU) Local Press

Originally the consultation was due to close on 19thApril 2013, however,
Old Aberdeen Community Council requested additional time to
prepare a response. The closing date was extended until 3rdMay 2013.

time for Committee
on committee.

As a result of this extended closing date this report could not be prepared
in

14thMay 2013 and so was postponed until this

Existing HMO Provision

The background information issued with the consultation stated

“Aberdeen City Council currently has 945 licensed HMO properties. From
the current register of HMOs it is clear that there is a geographic
concentration of HMOs in particular areas of the city. These areas are
traditionally where students will seek accommodation whilst studying at
the cities universities and colleges. These areas stretch from Old Aberdeen
through the city centre to Garthdee. It is also clear that there are large
areas of the city where there are a very limited number of HMOs and
therefore no issues with overprovision at present.
It is recognised that HMOs are an important way of providing
lower cost accommodation for students and others. Information
from student

Page 23



representatives, further education establishments, changes to welfare
policy and the Council’s Housing Need and Demand Assessment
together with the occupation of HMOs all point to a continuing demand
for this type of accommodation. As this demand is market driven we can
assume that there is also a continued demand to live within this type of
accommodation.“

Policy Development Across Scotland

Since the report was presented to the Housing& Environment Committee
there has been further activity across Scotland.

Glasgow City Council undertook a public consultation on a similar basis to
the one we conducted. Their consultation commenced after our
consultation, ending on 7th June 2013. As yet we have no indication on the
likely outcome.
Edinburgh City Council are currently at an early stage in looking at options
for an overprovision policy.

Fife Council - North East Fife Area Committee adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) in relation to Houses in
Multiple Occupation (HMOs) in the Central St. Andrews
Conservation Area. Details of the guidance are provided in the
next 3 paragraphs.
“Proposals for multiple occupation of a house or a flat that requires
planning permission will not be supported within the St Andrews Central
Conservation Area. The policy will apply to new planning applications or
proposals for change of use of existing properties and does not affect
the availability and operation of HMOs already with the benefit of
planning permission.
The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) (Scotland) Order 1997
includes within the definition of a house that it is the sole or main
residence of not more than five residents living together, including a
household where care is provided for residents. In planning terms
therefore, it is only where more than five unrelated people living in a
house that it is considered ‘development’ and planning permission is
required.
In determining the use of a flat as an HMO, it is a matter of fact and
degree whether the nature of the use is materially different from that of a
family flat. In Fife it is considered that three or more unrelated people
living together in a flat is materially different from family use. Planning
permission is therefore required where HMOs are created in flats that will
be occupied by three or more people.”
It should be noted that this policy is in place through planning and not
housing legislation.

Page 24



Individual HMO applications and objections

A HMO applicant is required to display a Notice of HMO Application in a
public place outside the property in a position, where it is capable of
being easily read by all neighbours and passers-by. This Notice must
remain on display for 21 days.

Should the Council receive any representation / objection to the
proposed HMO then the HMO Application is referred to the Council’s
Licensing Committee. The applicant and the objector are invited to the
Licensing Committee where all parties will be given the opportunity to
speak for/against the HMO application, following which the Committee
will decide whether to grant an HMO Licence, subject to all requirements
being met, or refuse the application.

Conclusion

The consultation received relatively few responses as detailed in the
following section.

The responses do not provide an overwhelming argument for restrictions
to apply to HMO provision across the city with the vast majority against
this. It should be noted that the responses were primarily from HMO
licence holders, applicants or their agents.

There is no consensus from the respondents on either the need for
restrictions to apply or indeed if they were introduced how the City
Council could define a 'locality' for this purpose.

The mapping of existing HMOs show that there are areas of higher and
lower concentrations of HMOs. If the recommendations contained in this
report are agreed the mapping of HMOs will be maintained to assist with
future reviews.

Page 25



HMO Overprovision Policy Consultation & Survey Responses

There were 168 respondents who completed the survey. Full details of
the responses to the survey and individual representations are
attached as an appendix to this report.

Survey Respondents

99 of the 168 respondents (59%) were current HMO licence holders or
applicants,. A further 31 were either landlords or agents. These
combine to 130 or 78% of the respondents.

Within the ‘Other’ category were AUSA (Aberdeen University Student’s
Association), SAL (Scottish Association of Landlords), SAL Aberdeen
Branch, Old Aberdeen Community Council and two respondents that
advised they were a multiple of the above options.

Several respondents completed the survey and provided supplementary
letters/emails to highlight particular concerns in relation to the proposed
policy that were not highlighted within the survey. Some of these
concerns were:

What evidence Aberdeen City Council had to support the
introduction

of an overprovision policy.
What an overprovision policy would mean for current licence

holders
when applying for renewal. It would be unfair to refuse to

licence at renewal stage.

Page 26



That HMO licenced premises would decrease within the
city as a result of the introduction of further sanctions on
those who try to operate within the law.

Current HMO licenced premises reducing number of
tenants to two sharing to avoid both HMO licensing and
overprovision policy.

The number of unlicenced HMOs would increase.

Impact on house prices. A licenced HMO within an area of
overprovision becoming more valuable on resale and
therefore unaffordable to both families and potential HMO
landlords.

Impact of large purpose built HMO properties. For example
an HMO property that is close to student halls.The provision and demand for HMO properties is market lead.

In
theory demand and supply should be governed by the

market.If an overprovision policy is introduced detail will need to be
publicly

available in relation to what areas the policy applies in order to
ensure that landlords can make an informed choice prior to the
purchase of any property.

Concerns for large purpose built developments in relation to
information being provided at the earliest stage possible

(for new developments).

The continued high rental and demand for a property once it
becomes

available for relet are evidence of there not being a problem
in relation to overprovision within the City.

Council has no idea of the ‘real’ number of HMOs therefore
no assessment can be made in relation to the number of
HMOs and therefore any overprovision within the City. This
would be impossible until all unlicenced properties become
licenced.

The loss of family housing within areas. Neglect of properties
from absentee landlords.

Lack of community cohesion where there is a high transient
population.

Page 27



The general consensus was that there was a continued requirement for
HMOs within Aberdeen. Not only for students but as a source of affordable
housing for other groups including those affected by changes to housing
benefit.
This is evidenced by comments received from landlords, students, letting
agents, landlord associations and The University of Aberdeen. This is also
supported by the strong market demand for this type of
accommodation and the short time to let when a property becomes
vacant.
Some of the comments received

s
h
a
r
e

w
i
t
h

m
o
r
e

t
h
a
n

t
w
o

p
e
o
p
l
e
.
’

‘Lack of affordable accommodation for sale or rent in
Aberdeen area’

‘There is always a VERY high demand for HMO properties in
Aberdeen; it is a city with two big universities where most
students

‘To regulate houses of multiple occupation and stop slumlords.’
‘There are many people both working and looking for work
that can notafford to rent a flat and HMO properties give them a more cost
effective options.’

Page 28



78% of responses were against the introduction of an HMO
Overprovision policy.

Those who were in favour of the introduction of an HMO Overprovision
Policy were concerned about the provision of a balanced and mixed
community (particularly within Old Aberdeen). Members of the
Community Council and Old Aberdeen Heritage Society feel that their
communities now contained an unbalanced community with an
increased transient population. The impact they felt this had on their
community was a ‘lack of community cohesion’ and concern to the
‘deteriorating physical standards’ of properties in relation to absentee
landlords and the introduction of driveways in place of gardens.
It is important to note that the overprovision guidance from the Scottish
Government takes no consideration of the management of an HMO
property and that within the conservation area planning permission would
need to be sought in order to change a garden into a driveway. Planning
officers have advised that there would be no difference between an
owner of a HMO property seeking this change of use and a non HMO
property owner. As such planning permission for this change could not be
withheld on the basis that the property was an HMO.

There is alternative legislation available in order to redress management
issues in relation to HMO properties and to tackle poorly maintained
private properties (rented or owned). The overprovision legislation can
only consider the number of HMOs within an area not the impact of the
number of HMOs within an area.

Page 29



Those who are against the introduction of an HMO Overprovision Policy
have raised concerns in relation to the reduction of the provision of HMOs
within the City.

Concerns have been raised in relation to the increase of rental cost for
HMOs that could be considered as ‘premium’, that is that they are
already established within an HMO Overprovision area (which by default
would be areas that were close in proximity to the Universities/College).
There are also concerns that the introduction would lead to an increase in
HMOs operating without a licence which would undermine the safety
elements that HMO licensing was introduced to ensure. Or that landlords
would simply reduce the number of tenants (also removing the need to
adhere to safety standards) or remove themselves from the market
altogether and therefore reduce the number of this type of affordable
accommodation within the City.

Due to the small numbers of those in favour of the introduction of an
HMO Overprovision policy it is difficult to ascertain the most suitable
location to base any policy on. Of the 168 respondents 46 responded
to this question.
Some of the ‘other’ suggested localities were:

Smaller localities

Page 30



Other suggestions were less about locality in relation to establishing
any overprovision and more about the policy in general.

The policy should look to objective criteria such as level of validated
complaints of anti social behaviour or criminal behaviour, stress

on services or quality of accommodation. I believe that a one size fits
all mathematical formula, such as a radius rule will lead to anomalies
and unfairness for landlords. If a problem really exists in a particular
area that should be identified clearly and any restriction introduced
should apply to new applications only. Any renewals should not be
subject to the new policy as this would clearly be unfair. The criteria
and procedures fro renewing HMOs are rigorous and expensive
already and if they are subject to cancellation under a new policy or
criteria this would be disproportionate to any perceived problem.
These comments should be taken in the context of my view that likely
no extra policy is required given existing criteria.

Introduce a moratorium on the conservation areas of the
City in

particular and give special consideration for
conservation areas.

When would it be appropriate to consider that overprovision of HMOs in
an area has been reached?

When considering the percentage based calculation 110 responded in
relation to what percentage of properties should be considered
‘overprovision’. However, given the high number of negative responses in
relation to the introduction of an HMO Overprovision Policy the responses
are not surprising.

Page 31



Respondents were invited to provide alternative calculations to
determine overprovision of HMOs. Some of the responses are
contained below:

There should be no more than one HMO in the smallest units - e.g.
a

crescent or short row of houses of fewer than 10 dwellings.
Too many large HMOs in one area or anti social behaviour need to

be
considered.

Supply and demand in specific areas, not all areas are the same
for

obvious reasons so it is totally unfair to apply one formula to all
areas.There should be a free market which will be self

adjusting. Don’t issue any more HMOs.
It should be based on application by application basis and not

as a
fixed rule.

Respondents were invited to provide any other comments they had in
relation to the introduction of an HMO Overprovision Policy. 127 provided
extensive comments. These are provided in detail as an appendix,
however, the following are provided as an example.

ApropertywithanHMOlicencemaynotnecessarilybeletasanHMO
all the time. I will be moving out of the sector as too onerous to

be an HMO landlord.

Page 32



The views of neighbours must be taken into account before granting
HMO licence.

HMO levels in Old Aberdeen are in urgent need of restraint.

Families are now overrun in Old Aberdeen as HMO move in and knock
on means less parking spaces more run down gardens and
excess rubbish around end of university when move on.

I think a policy like this is a terrible idea which would cause many
problems for the people of Aberdeen. From my perspective

as a student the current HMO policy is ideal and makes it much
easier to find a home where I can feel safe and study effectively.

It would be more useful in the Council could spend money on
publishing and enforcing the HMO rules as a number of

tradesmen I had round for quotes didn’t even know what that was.

I think that it is only fair to give precedence to those landlords re
applying, particularly those that have paid the high fees in the last few
years.

Quite unbelievable how much money the Council wastes on
hammering the best landlords in Aberdeen, whilst doing

nothing to catch or punish the bad landlords. This will encourage
more bad landlords. Enough is enough!

It is nowhere set out why a high no. of HMOs is a bad thing. Surely
the

way HMOs are run is the issue not the number of HMO units in
itself.Now that anyone under 35 will only receive a shared room rent

allowance, it will increase demand for HMO licenced properties
so now is not the time to be limiting the provision of licences.

There is an old saying - “if it aint broken, don’t fix it.” Unless the
Council can identify a good reason for introducing a policy -

unless the number of HMOs is demonstrably impacting adversely on
citizens, then there should be no further regulation. This, potentially,
looks like regulation for the sake of regulation.

6. IMPACT

Corporate - None arising from this report.

Public - This report will be of interest given the public consultation
which has led to the drafting.

Page 33



7. MANAGEMENT OF RISK

The Council in determining an application for a HMO licence
is ultimately open to legal challenge by either an applicant or
objector. Any such challenge could lead to a decision by the
Licensing Committee being reviewed by a Sheriff.

8. BACKGROUND PAPERS

Responses to the survey and the letters received during the
consultation are attached to this report.

9. REPORT AUTHOR DETAILS

Graeme Stuart - Housing Strategy and Performance
Manager ph. (52)3043
E-mail - gstuart@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 34



Appendix 1
Private Rented Housing (Scotland) Act 2011

131A Overprovision

(1) The local authority may refuse to grant an HMO licence if it considers

that there is (or, as a result of granting the licence, would be)
overprovision of HMOs in the locality in which the living
accommodation concerned is situated.

(2) In considering whether to refuse to grant an HMO licence under

subsection (1), the local authority must have regard to— a) whether

there is an existing HMO licence in effect in respect of the living

accommodation,
b) the views (if known) of—

i. the applicant, and

ii. if applicable, any occupant of the living
accommodation,

c) such other matters as the Scottish Ministers may by order specify.

(3) It is for the local authority to determine the localities within its area for

the purpose of this section.

(4) In considering whether there is or would be overprovision for the
purposes of subsection (1) in any locality, the local authority must

have regard to—

a) the number and capacity of licensed HMOs in the locality, b) the

need for housing accommodation in the locality and the extent to which

HMO accommodation is required to meet that need, c) such other

matters as the Scottish Ministers may by order specify.

(5) Before making an order under subsection (2)(c) or (4)(c), the Scottish

Ministers must consult—local
authorities,

such persons or
bodies as
appear to
them to be
representative
of the interests
of—

i.
landlords, ii.

i f Page 35



c) such other persons or bodies (if any) as they consider
appropriate

(which may include landlords or occupiers of houses)”.

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 131

Agenda Item 2.6



Page 132



Page 133

Agenda Item 2.7



Page 134



Page 135

Agenda Item 2.8



Page 136



Page 137

Agenda Item 2.9



Page 138



Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



Page 141

Agenda Item 2.10



Page 142



Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



Page 146



Page 147

Agenda Item 2.11



Page 148



Page 149

Agenda Item 2.12



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 150



Page 151

Agenda Item 2.13



Page 152



Appendix 1 
 

NOTICE TO BE PROMINENTLY DISPLAYED IN VEHICLE 

CITY OF ABERDEEN 
LICENSING OF TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE CARS 

MAXIMUM CHARGES APPLICABLE TO HIRE OF TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE CARS FITTED WITH TAXI 
METERS – WITH EFFECT FROM 19 DECEMBER 2011 

 
Basic Tariff

(A) For the FIRST 950 yards       £2.40 
(B) For every additional 180.5 yards (Time Locked in Meter)    £0.20 
Extras
(A) Waiting

A sum calculated at the rate of £23.00 per hour. 

(B) Surcharges
(NB: Surcharges 1 to 6 and 8 to 11 apply to all taxis and private hire cars fitted with a meter.  Surcharge 

7 applies only to hires commencing at the airport for taxis zoned to operate there). 
 
(1) For each hiring between 10pm on Mondays to Thursdays 
 inclusive and 8am the following day.  (Time Locked in Meter)  £1.00 

(2) For each hiring between 10pm on Friday and 8am on the 
 following Monday. (Time Locked in Meter)    £1.00 
 
(3) For each hiring between 2am and 5am on Saturday and 

Sunday mornings.  (Time Locked in Meter)    £2.00 
 
(4) For each hiring pre-booked.      £1.00 
 
(5) For each hiring on the Spring, May Day, Midsummer and 
 Autumn holidays as follows:-      £1.00 
 

2012 – 16 April, 07 May, 09 July and 24 September 
 2013 – 22 April, 06 May, 08 July and 23 September  
 
(6) For each hiring between 10pm on 24 December and 5am on  Add 50% to 
 27 December and between 10pm on 31 December and 5am  basic tariff 

on 3 January.  (Time Locked in Meter) 
 

(7) For each hiring commencing at the Airport.      £1.00 
 
(8) For each hiring commencing at Aberdeen Railway Station.   £0.50 

(9) A charge of £50 per incident of fouling a taxi. 
 
(10) Where more than four passengers carried.      Add 50% to 

basic tariff plus  
surcharges (excluding 
surcharges 4,7 and 8) 

 
(11) Payment by debit or credit card.       Add 10% to 
 fare 

Jane G MacEachran 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

Page 181



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 182



Appendix 2 

 

5.1 Development of Fare Formula 
5.1 General 

Following the review undertaken for Aberdeen City Council it is clear that any fare 
formula derived for Aberdeen City Council should be: 

• Easy to use; 
• Transparent; 
• Directly rated to the costs of operating a taxi; and 
• Use easily obtainable data. 

 

The existing formula has been used for a number of years to provide regular fare 
reviews.  The review of local authorities has highlighted that a number of other local 
authorities measure fare increases through determining vehicle running costs year on 
year.  Although Aberdeen does currently incorporate vehicle running costs in its 
calculation, we feel that amendments do need to be made to the existing formula.  
This is because the existing formula as it stands: 

• double counts insurance;   
• is only based on ‘live’ mileage not total mileage; and 
• the formula uses the ‘Aberdeen’ earnings value, not the UK value which is 

most commonly used by other authorities. 
 

The review of local authorities conducted demonstrated that as there is no one 
recommended approach to increasing fare tariffs there are a range of methodologies 
used.   However we do feel that the current formula does need to be amended.  We 
are proposing that the current formula is amended to be more in line with the 
authorities reviewed and reduce inaccuracies with double counting the cost of 
insurance.  We don’t propose to include the additional elements incorporated by the 
London model as we don’t feel that London is comparable to Aberdeen.  A major 
element of running costs for London drivers is the cost of the Knowledge test – this is 
not applicable to Aberdeen.   

The index developed for use in Aberdeen based on the principles applied by other 
local authorities, involves calculating the sum of two component parts, operating 
costs and UK average national earnings, in a formula as follows: 

CHANGE Index = CHANGE Costs + CHANGE Earnings 

For the purposes of this report data has been obtained from December 2011 and 
December 2012 in order to demonstrate how the formula works.  The baseline data 
may need to be changed to an earlier date should the authority wish to amend the 
tariff i.e. the data could be changed to the date of the last review.  We would 
recommend that the review was conducted on an annual basis as this is generally 
when the component data is produced. 

The index is based on a simple spreadsheet and is easily updateable by the authority.  
The output of the model is a percentage change between the two years running costs 
– it is this percentage which could be applied to the fare tariff.

Page 183



5.2 Summary of Findings 

We believe that the model for assessing the cost changes should reflect owner-driver 
operation, which is the type of operation that is predominant in Aberdeen.  The 
reviewed index proposed for Aberdeen City Council should include the following 
elements: 

• Vehicle Costs (inc. Vehicle Excise Duty); 
• Parts; 
• Tyres; 
• Insurance; 
• Servicing costs; 
• Fuel; 
• Licence fees; and 
• Average Earnings (inc NI). 

We have excluded social costs and the cost of the knowledge in this index in line with 
other authorities outside of London including Manchester, Glasgow and Edinburgh. 
There however remains a certain degree of difficulty in obtaining accurate data for 
the component parts of the index due to the complex nature of assessing a ‘typical’ 
case with regards to taxi operation in the local market. 

5.3 Ownership Issues 

The main difficulty in assessing the costs associated with operating a taxi is selecting 
what constitutes a “typical case”. There are a number of different ownership/operator 
permutations. Each permutation affects the underlying economics of taxicab 
operation. 

The majority of taxi operators are self-employed owner-drivers i.e. they own and 
operate the cab as a business from which they draw income, or salary, although this 
is by no means the only way in which a taxi can be operated.  

There are other possibilities that have different cost structures depending on the 
number of drivers and the number of taxis operated, although the scope for 
economies of scale is not great. We understand however that in Aberdeen the 
majority is for owner/driver operation and thus in line with best practice we have 
built up costs on this basis. 

5.4 Cost Breakdown 

Discussions with the Trade indicate that the annual mileage for a taxi driver in 
Aberdeen is 48,000 miles. In order to qualify this fleet services were contacted and 
asked to provide annual mileage figures based upon a random sample of vehicles.  
This resulted in a figure of 28,000 miles per annum.  Further consultation with the 
trade has suggested that this value is too low.  They are of the view that 35,000 miles 
may be more representative of the average annual mileage. However, best practice is 
to provide a fair and accurate figure for the average annual mileage based on 
statistical evidence. Therefore, I recommend that a sample of 10% of taxis should be 
used to work out an accurate average annual mileage to be included in the formula.  
Should a higher mileage value be applied to the model this may have a negative 

Page 184



impact to the overall percentage change as the running costs will be spread over a 
larger value, thereby reducing the cost per mile.    

The following text analyses the assumptions and trends behind each of the operating 
costs, and the way in which the data was obtained.   

5.5 Vehicle Cost 

Taxi buying behaviour is complex and influenced by a number of factors, all of which 
make any objective assessment of the annual cost hard to achieve. There are a number 
of permutations for the cost of ownership which produce significantly different 
results. For example, a vehicle may be purchased under a hire-purchase deal, a lease 
arrangement or a straight loan repayment. Moreover, there exists a choice of different 
vehicles for use as taxis in Aberdeen, with different cost implications that apply to 
different makes and models.  For simplicity and due to the range of vehicle types in 
Aberdeen we have simply included the cost of vehicle purchase based on a life span 
of five years.  It was felt that eight years as used by other authorities was not 
reflective of the fleet in Aberdeen.  Glasgow, Edinburgh and Manchester have used 
eight years as a benchmark for a 100% purpose built fleet.  We recognise that the 
lifecycle for saloon vehicles and conversions is less than eight years and as such have 
used a value of five years. This also represents the standard term of lease or hire 
purchase of a vehicle from Cab Direct. 

Drivers may choose to operate any vehicle that complies with Aberdeen City 
Council’s specifications, as set out in its licensing policy, in terms of height, length 
and seating capacity. The authority requires that all taxis are wheelchair accessible by 
June 2017.  At present some 48% of the fleet is comprised of fully accessible vehicles.  
The remaining 52% comprise standard saloon, hatchback or estate cars (as opposed to 
purpose-built hackney carriage vehicles, such as EuroTaxi or TX models).   

In line with best practice the cost of the most prevalent vehicles in the fleet have been 
used to derive costs.  Basic models have been used in the costing as there is no 
requirement for taxis to be ‘luxury’ models by Aberdeen City Council. 

Analysis of the vehicle fleet has highlighted that the most popular saloon vehicle 
used by the trade is a Ford Mondeo.  This has therefore been assumed as a vehicle 
‘typical’ of local market operation.  For the purposes of the index the basic diesel 
model has been assumed, with a value at new of £20,195 (on the road price advised 
by Ford).  Consultation with the trade has indicated that drivers are most likely 
obtain their saloon vehicles from Cab Direct rather than the local Ford Dealership.  
Therefore for an accurate reflection of the cost to the trade we feel that all vehicle cost 
data should be derived from Cab Direct year on year. 

Analysis of the accessible fleet has identified the Fiat Doblo to be the most popular 
accessible vehicle.  However it is our understanding that the latest Doblo model is not 
suitable as a wheelchair accessible taxi.  Therefore we have chosen the second most 
popular vehicle – Peugeot Partner/Premier.  The model meeting Aberdeen City 
Council’s vehicle specification has been priced by Cab Direct at £17,900. 

In line with other authorities we have calculated the cost of purchasing both vehicles 
and for depreciation purposes assumed a lifecycle of 5 years.  This figure is applied to 
both the Edinburgh and Glasgow indexes and has therefore been applied to 
Aberdeen. It is our understanding that Aberdeen are moving to a 100% accessible 

Page 185



fleet by 2017.  We would recommend that the formula is reviewed in 2017 in line with 
the change of policy as this will have implications for the lifecycle of vehicles. 

5.6 Parts 

As with vehicle costs, quantification of precise figures for the replacement of parts is 
difficult to estimate, since the parts required over the course of a year may be 
expected to be dependent on the mileage covered, general wear and tear, the age of 
the vehicle, the make and model of the vehicle, and general upkeep.  Both Edinburgh 
and Glasgow price a sample of parts on an annual basis.  However given the wide 
range of vehicles in Aberdeen this is a time consuming task for the authority.   

To simplify this process and make it robust, we have examined motoring running 
cost tables produced annually by the Automobile Association (the AA). These tables 
are based on information sourced on the 60 top-selling vehicle models in each year, 
representative of the wider UK market. A breakdown of motoring running costs is 
provided in pence per mile, broken down by fuel type and the purchase price of the 
vehicle when new. The figures may be used for a guide as to how much it is likely to 
cost the average driver to run a car over the preceding 12 month period.  

The replacement parts component of the motoring running cost tables includes the 
cost of replacing those parts likely to need periodic replacement under normal 
driving conditions, such as brake materials, oils, filters, bulbs, wipers and hoses. 
Equivalent values in 2011 and 2012 were obtained (based on the vehicle type and 
mileage assumptions previously presented), with the percentage change over the 
course of the year calculated. 

Since this methodology does not take into account the life of original parts, costs may 
be assumed to be slightly overestimated when presented over the lifetime of the 
vehicle. This may increase the fares. However, it is good practice as it reflects running 
costs to the trade. 

5.7 Tyres 

The AA state that tyres should expect to last a minimum of 20,000 miles and therefore 
we have assumed a life of 20,000 per tyre.  The change in cost for replacement of tyres 
has also been calculated using the AA’s motoring running cost tables for 2011 and 
2012.  1Both Edinburgh and Glasgow indexes take tyres into consideration as part of 
the ‘parts’ component.  However due to the wide range of vehicles licensed in 
Aberdeen this simplified method has been used. 

As before, since this methodology does not take into account the life of the original 
tyres, costs may be assumed to be slightly overestimated when presented over the 
lifetime of the vehicle. This may increase the fares. However, it is good practice as it 
reflects running costs to the trade. 

5.8 Garage & Servicing – Premises 

This component of the index represents the labour cost of undertaking any repair 
work on the vehicle, including the replacement of parts.  In line with best practice 

 

1 http://www.theaa.com/motoring_advice/running_costs/index.html 

Page 186



pence per mile costs have again been obtained for 2011 and 2012 from review of the 
respective motoring running cost tables produced by the AA2. Labour costs cover 
normal servicing and parts replacement at a dealer, assuming average UK labour 
rates.  This data is readily available and transparent and therefore we propose it 
should be used in Aberdeen. 

5.9 Fuel 

In line with best practice, fuel costs are also sourced from the AA’s motoring running 
cost tables3. The values obtained are based on an average cost for diesel fuel 
throughout the year. This makes the value less susceptible to periodic dramatic 
changes in fuel prices that may occur on a week-by-week or month-by-month basis. 

5.10 Insurance 

The cost of insurance previously has been derived from information provided by the 
trade.  The 2011 data has been obtained from data provided in a 2011 committee 
report.  However for the purposes of future fare reviews we suggest that three actual 
quotes are obtained with a ‘typical’ driver agreed upon with the trade.  This will 
produce more accurate quotations and be more representative of the Aberdeen trade. 
This method is applied in other authorities and as insurance costs vary according to 
geographic location and age of driver, we propose it be applied in Aberdeen.  
Analysis of the driver database identified that the current average driver is a 53 year 
old male.  It is recommended that best practice is to calculate the average driver age 
using the age of all drivers. This calculation should be made at each fare review.  
Discussion with the trade has suggested that 4 years no claims discount should be 
applied to the quotes.  We recommend that 4 years no claims discount is agreed as 
the information was provided by a local taxi insurance agent. 

5.11 Miscellaneous 

Within this category we have included the cost of licences necessary to operate a taxi 
in Aberdeen as advised by Aberdeen City Council. 

We have also included the annual cost of vehicle excise duty4, assuming vehicle type 
as per the previous assumptions. We have not chosen to include the cost of obtaining 
a permit at the airport or the station – this is not a general cost incurred to all the 
trade and therefore is excluded from the model. 

5.12 Average National Earnings 

Average national earnings in both 2011 and 2012 have been derived from figures 
published by the Office of National Statistics in their Annual Survey of Hours and 
Earnings statistical bulletin.  The authorities reviewed identified that authorities 
differ in their approach to measuring earnings.  Glasgow uses the Scottish mean, 

 

2 http://www.theaa.com/motoring_advice/running_costs/index.html 

3 http://www.theaa.com/motoring_advice/running_costs/index.html 

4 https://www.gov.uk/calculate-vehicle-tax-rates 

Page 187



Edinburgh uses the UK mean and Manchester uses the UK median5. We would 
recommend that the UK annual mean figures are applied to the formula in Aberdeen.  
This has been applied successfully in Edinburgh and Manchester over a number of 
years and uses publicly published data. 

Data has been derived using the tables for Mean Annual Gross Earnings for the UK6.
This was used as the trade felt that Aberdeen was unique from other Scottish cities 
having a much higher level of average earnings.   This is clear when reviewing  
earnings – Aberdeen’s mean annual earnings are significantly higher than other 
Scottish authorities.  Using the UK average as opposed to the Scottish average will 
take this into account, as will using the mean as opposed to the median.  Although as 
long as the same dataset is used every year any relevant earnings dataset could be 
used.  However are recommendation is to use the UK annual earnings for full time 
employees.  

In line with both Edinburgh and Glasgow we also recommend the need to include 
Annual National Insurance costs.  This is based on a Class 2 weekly worker 

 

5 Manchester used the ‘mean’ value until the latest fare review in late 2012 

6 ONS, ASHE 2012 Table 8.7a Annual pay 

Page 188



6 Cost Calculations and Conclusion 
6.1 Calculating the Index 

Example index cost calculations, shown in Table 6.1 below, outline sample annual 
costs for each component in December 2011 and December 2012. Example values 
have been used purely to give an indication of how the formula works.  Also shown 
is the percentage change over the course of the year and the contribution of each 
component to the total increase. All values are based on an average mileage of xx,xxx 
miles per year. This example has been used as best practice as to use the average 
annual mileage derived from a sample of 10% of Aberdeen taxis’ annual mileage 
from fleet services records. 

6.2 Conclusions 

Having reviewed the existing formula and undertaken the review of other authorities 
it is clear that amendments to the existing  formula is required.  The existing formula 
is somewhat outdated and does not accurately reflect the true running costs to the 
trade. 

The review of Scottish city authorities and English authorities of Manchester and 
London has identified that it is best practice to calculate taxi fare reviews using either 
the Retail Price Index or by an index attributed to the costs of running a taxi. 

It is proposed that Aberdeen City Council adopts an index based formula to calculate 
fare reviews.  This is based upon best practice (Edinburgh, London, Glasgow and 
Manchester), the data accurately reflects the actual costs of running a taxi and the 
data is readily available thereby creating a much more transparent process. We 
recommend that all of the datasets should be from fixed official sources, such as ONS, 
AA, Cab Direct7 and averages from data recorded by the local authority. Figures 
should not be based on estimates from the trade on a year by year basis as this may 
lead to fare increases that do not accurately reflect the costs and which will 
undermine the purpose of creating an equitable fare formula that can be relied upon 
year on year to produce an accurate taxi fare based on running costs.  

6.3 Recommendations 

We recommend that Aberdeen City Council introduce an index based formula to 
review taxi fares as set out in this report. This is based upon Halcrow’s review of best 
practice and consultation with the trade and officers.  We also recommend that this 
review is carried out on an annual basis, which is in line with Manchester, Glasgow 
and Dundee.  This is also in line with the time requirements of Section 17 of the Civil 
Government Act.   The fare review can be carried out annually as the ONS and AA 
data is produced annually. The fare review process should be simpler as the formula 
can be fixed as agreed by the trade and the licensing authority and used each year 
with the current datasets input to the formula. There should be no requirement for 

 

7 Cab Direct is a supplier of taxis to the Aberdeen trade 

Page 189



negotiation of figures between the authority and the trade. For illustrative purposes 
Table 6.1 sets out how the index would work in practice.   

Table 6.1 Example Index Cost Calculations 

Component in Index Annual Cost 
December 2011 

Annual Cost 
December 2012 

% Change 2011-
2012 

Vehicle cost £2,300 £2,500 8.7% 

Replacement parts £619 £703 13.57% 

Tyres £375 £456 21.64% 

Garaging & servicing – labour  £1,002 £944 -5.87% 

Fuel £3,220 £3,640 13.04% 

Insurance £900 £1,100 22.2% 

Miscellaneous £305 £320 4.92% 

Total operating costs £8,721 £9,663 9.74% 

Average national earnings £27,976 £29,403 5.10% 

National Insurance £350 £450 1.29% 

Total index costs £37,047 £39,516 6.7% 

As the last fare review was conducted in 2011 we recommend that data from 2011 is 
accepted as the baseline for the initial application of the formula.  Given that the 
existing formula used AA motoring costs data from 2011 to determine the fare 
increase we propose that the change index can be directly applied to the current fare 
tariff. 

 

Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 202



ABERDEEN TAXI FARE REVIEW 2013
COMPARISON OF FARES FOR TYPICAL JOURNEYS

Appendix 4

1 Passenger, no waiting time, not
pre-booked

Aberdeen Edinburgh Glasgow Dundee Aberdeen
shire

Aberdeen Edinburgh Glasgow Dundee Aberdeen
shire

Aberdeen Edinburgh Glasgow Dundee Aberdeen
shire

Hire at 3pm midweek

5.40 5.60 5.00 5.38 6.00 9.20 9.35 8.20 8.38 10.40 13.20 13.10 11.60 11.38 14.80

Hire at 11pm midweek

6.40 6.60 5.00 5.84 7.00 10.20 10.35 8.20 9.04 11.40 14.20 14.10 11.60 12.24 15.80

Hire at 11pm Saturday

6.40 6.60 5.00 6.46 7.00 10.20 10.35 8.20 10.06 11.40 14.20 14.10 11.60 13.66 15.80

Hire at 3am Saturday

7.40 6.60 7.40 6.46 7.00 11.20 10.35 10.60 10.06 11.40 15.20 14.10 14.00 13.66 15.80

.

6 miles2 miles 4 miles

Edinburgh wef 29 July 2013
Glasgow wef 10 Sept 2012
Dundee wef 01 April 2013
Aberdeenshire wef 01 July 2013 ( no change since the last time the comparison done for the 2011 fare review, even though they have undertaken 2 reviews since then., fares
have remained unaltered.

P
age 203



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 204


	Agenda
	1.3 Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation - Overprovision Consultation Feedback - Referral from the Housing and Environment Committee
	6 4 HE-13-050 Licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation-Overprovison Consultation Feedback0

	2.6 Renewal of a Public Entertainment Licence - St Andrews Cathedral Church
	2.7 Grant of a Late Hours Catering Licence - McDonald's Restaurants
	2.8 Grant of a Late Hours Catering Licence - Adies
	2.9 Grant of a Metal Dealer Licence - GB International (UK) Limited, Kiosk P2
	2.10 Renewal of a Street Trader Licence - Alexander Jack
	2.11 Grant of a Street Trader Licence - Elaine Elrick
	2.12 Grant of a Street Trader Licence - Feng Lan Huang
	2.13 Grant of a Taxi Driver Licence - David Robert Bruce
	3.5 Taxi Fare Review - CG/13/036
	Taxi Fare Review 2013 Appendix 1 Current Tariff
	Taxi Fare Review 2013 Appendix 2 Extract from Halcrow Report
	Taxi Fare Review 2013 Appendix 3 Cost Breakdown
	Taxi Fare Review 2013 Appendix 4 Fare Comparison


